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Lymanhurst

Key details

Also known as Lynola

Addresses At 17 Blackheath Road, Oxley, Queensland 4076

Type of place House

Period Federation 1890-1914

Style Queenslander

Lot plan L1_SP259385; L2_SP259385

Key dates Local Heritage Place Since — 30 November 2012
Date of Citation — January 2011

Construction Roof: Corrugated iron;
Walls: Timber

People/associations Clement Lyman Fox (Occupant)

Criterion for listing (A) Historical; (B) Rarity; (E) Aesthetic

‘Lymanhurst’ was built in 1890-92 by Walter Nash Morcom, owner of successful Brisbane printery, Morcoms Ltd,
Printers. Built at the apex of a hill close to the Oxley Railway Station, ‘Lymanhurst’ represents the way in which
Oxley evolved from a rural outpost to a suburb of Brisbane increasingly settled by white collar workers seeking
alternative residences from those in the crowded inner-city. The coming of an effective railway system through
Oxley necessitated this growth. ‘Lymanhurst’ was home to Clement Lyman Fox, respected District School
Inspector, from 1912.

History
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The area now known as Oxley was first named by New South Wales Surveyor-General John Oxley as Canoe
Creek in 1823. However, it was two years later when Edmund Lockyer was surveying the Brisbane River that he
renamed the tributary Oxley’s Creek. The area from Chelmer to Oxley was known as “Boyland’s Pocket” in the
1850s, Captain Boyland having leased the area in 1851. In 1860 the new Queensland Government opened up
the district for selection, at a price of 1 pound per acre, resulting in the establishment of a number of farms
ranging anywhere between 25 and 70 acres in size. Attempts were made by pioneer selectors during the 1860s
and 1870s to produce maize, potatoes, bananas, cotton, sugar cane, and arrowroot.

A major factor in the development of both Oxley and Darra was the completion of the Ipswich to Brisbane railway
line in 1876 that provided a direct rail link between the towns. Prior to this the Ipswich line reached Sherwood
and passed through Darra and Oxley from 1874. This reduced the isolation of the area and allowed for increased
subdivision. The move to the Oxley and Darra areas, however, was gradual and the rural feel was retained for
some time.

By the late nineteenth century Oxley had two main areas of development. The first was along Ipswich Road
where the hotel had been established. Businesses such as a store, a butcher and a blacksmith shop were
established as the population slowly increased and the need for services arose. In 1864 a non-denominational
church was built near the corner of Bannerman and Ipswich Roads and the first Oxley school was built in 1873
with 32 enrolments when opened. This area became known as Oxley Central. The second area of development
in Oxley was beside the railway station. However, this was slower to develop commercially than the first.

In 1889 Walter Nash Morcom purchased approximately one acre of land at Oxley. With the extension of the
railway line over the Brisbane River to the city the Oxley area gained popularity for those wishing to move out of
the more crowded inner-city areas to the newly developing suburbs. In the 1890s the population of the inner-
Brisbane suburbs began to decrease as more than 2000 residents moved out of the centre to establish homes in
outer suburbs. White collar workers, able to take advantage of the improved public transport system into and out
of the commercial hub of Brisbane City, began to establish stately houses in areas along the railway line such as
Chelmer, Sherwood and Corinda. A pattern of development emerged as the wealthier were able to build large
homes on the apex of hills — deemed advantageous positions affording views, breezes, protection from flooding,
and in wet weather avoidance of effluent run off. Although Oxley was only a few more miles out along the line
the number of stately homes established in the late nineteenth century was minimal. The majority of housing
stock in Oxley was smaller timber farm-houses, scattered through the area that reflected the rural predominance
of Oxley at this time.

In 1889 Morcom took out two large mortgages, one for £500, the other for £100. It is likely that this funding was
used to build the stately house on Blackheath Road. Prior to 1893 there was no Walter Morcom listed in the Post
Office Directories in Oxley, nor in the Electoral Rolls. The evidence, therefore, indicates that the house was built
between 1890 and 1892. The house was named ‘Lynola’. Walter Nash Morcom was an immigrant from
Manchester who came to Australia in 1873, eventually settling in Brisbane and gaining a partnership at the
printing firm Muir and Morcom in 1884 as a “Stationer, Printer, Lithographer, and Bookbinder”. 1 By 1913 Walter
Morcom had established his own successful printing firm, Morcoms Ltd.. Walter Morcom and his family resided
in the premises until 1913.

Date of Citation — January 2011 Page 2



The property was sold to Clement Lyman Fox, the district School Inspector. Fox is first recorded at the addressin
1913. Once again the proximity to the Oxley Railway Station was beneficial to the public service role that Fox
carried out. Clement Lyman Fox resided in the house until his death in 1940 at which time the property was
transferred to his son Clement Leonard Fox.

‘Lymanhurst’ is an important example of a stately nineteenth-century residence built in Oxley at a time when the
area was predominately farms but was slowly being settled by Brisbane’s white collar workers, attracted by the
improved transportation. The residence is a rare surviving example of a grand nineteenth-century home built
atop a hill overlooking Oxley.

Statement of significance

Relevant assessment criteria

This is a place of local heritage significance and meets one or more of the local heritage criteria under the
Heritage planning scheme policy of the Brisbane City Plan 2014. It is significant because:

Historical
CRITERION A

The place is important in demonstrating the evolution or pattern of the city's or local area’s history

‘Lymanhurst' is a stately nineteenth-century timber residence that reflects the increased white collar settlement in
the Oxley district in this period.

Rarity
CRITERION B

The place demonstrates rare, uncommon or endangered aspects of the city’s or local area’s cultural heritage

as a rare surviving elite nineteenth-century residence in Oxley.

Aesthetic
CRITERION E

The place is important because of its aesthetic significance

as a stately timber nineteenth-century residence built on the apex of a hill overlooking Oxley.
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Note: This citation has been prepared on the basis of evidence available at the time including an external
examination of the building. The statement of significance is a summary of the most culturally important aspects
of the property based on the available evidence, and may be re-assessed if further information becomes
available. The purpose of this citation is to provide an informed evaluation for heritage registration and
information. This does not negate the necessity for a thorough conservation study by a qualified practitioner,
before any action is taken which may affect its heritage significance.
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